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Indspendent Auditors Repart

To the Members of Ascent Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Ascent Hotels Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act” in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in arenrdance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Charterad Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidsnce we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion-on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter(s)

We draw attention to Note 44 to the financial statements which indicates that the comparative information
presented as at 1 April 2021 and as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022 has been restated to correct
the prior period error pertaining to measurement for Optionally Convertible Redeemable Debentures.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professicnal judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Going Concern

See Note 38 to financial statements
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BSR &Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Ascent Hotels Private Limited

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The financial statements of the Company have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Company has a negative net worth of INR
2,283.67 million as at 31 March 2023 and has
incurred a net loss of INR 522.53 million during
the year ended 31 March 2023, As at 31 March
2023, the Company's cument liabilities
exceeded its current assets by INR 760.81
million. Further, the Company has contractual
cash outflows of INR 886.33 million (excluding
future contractual interest payments) due
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

The Company has prepared budgets / cash
flow forecasts, which involve judgements and
estimation around the sources of funds to meet
the financial obligations and cash flow
requirements.

Based on the projected future cash flows, the
Company expects to meet its future cash flow
requirements from:

* Expected increase in cash flow from
operations.

*  Availability of unrestricted cash and bank
balances and undrawn credit facilities.

* Financial and operational support by
SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holding Company).

In view of the above, the management and the
Board of Directors believe that the Company
will be able to meet all its contractual
obligations and liabilities as and when they fall
due in near future.

Consgidering the subjectivity involved in the
assessment performed by the management
and board of directors of the Company, we
have identified the assessment of going
concern assumption as a key audit matter

Our audit procedures included:

Enquired with the management and those
charged with governance regarding the
Company's ability to meet their obligations for
the next 12 months.

Assessed the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts for
the next 12 months.

Compared the forecasted statement of profit and
loss and cash flows with the Company's
business plans approved by the board of
directors of the Hoiding Company.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts
which includes occupancy rate, average room
rate ete. To consider forecasting risk we also
performed sensitivity analysis over these
assumptions.

Assessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts
through a retrospective review of actual
performance in comparison to budgets.

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements relating to uncertainties and
mitigation thereof.

Impairment assessment of Property Plant and Equipment, Capital work-in-progress and Other

Intangible Assets

See Note 47 to financial statements

Page 2 of 15



BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Ascent Hotels Private Limited

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying value of
Property Plant and Egquipment, CWIP and
Other Intangible Assets amounts to Rs.
2,961.19 million,

The Company periodically assess whether
there is any indication that such Property Plant
and Equipment, CWIP and Other Intangible
Assets at cash generating unit (CGU) level may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of
these assets and if the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.
That reduction is recorded as impairment loss.

To assess the recoverability of the CGU,
management is reguired to make significant
estimates and assumptions related to forecast
of future revenue, operating margins, exit
multiple and selection of the discount rates.
The Company used the discounted cash flow
approach to determine the recoverable value of
the CGU. These assumptions are of particular
importance due to the extent of judgment
involved, thus changes in these assumptions
could have a significant impact on the
recoverable value of the CGU.

Considering the inherent uncertainty,
complexity and  judgement involved,
impairment assessment of the above-
mentioned assets has been considered as a
key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included:

* Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
process for projecting the future cash flows for
determining the recoverable amount of CGU.

* Tested the appropriateness of management's
basis to identify relevant CGUs for which
impairment testing is performed.

* Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
impairment assessment process.

* Evaluated the Company's key market related
assumpfions such as discount rate and exit
multiple.

* Assessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts
through a refrospective review of actual
performance in comparison to budgets.

* Evaluated the reasonableness of the
assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts
which includes occupancy rate, average room
rate. To consider forecasting risk we also
performed sensitivity analysis over these
assumptions.

»  Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures
made in the financial statements,

Revenue recognition

See Note 2.11 to financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is principally engaged as a hotel
owner. lt's revenue comprises hotel revenue
(including rcom revenue, food and beverage
revenue and recreation and other services
revenue).

The accounting policies for different revenue
streams are set out in Note 2.11 to the financial

Our audit procedures included:-

* Tested the Company's revenue recognition
accounting policies and its compliance with the
relevant accounting standard.

* Tested design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key controls of the revenue

%
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

statements. recognition process.
. - * Performed substantive testing (including year-
Revenue is a key performance indicator of the end cut off testing) by selecting samples of

Company and there is risk of overstatement of
revenue due to fraud resulting from pressure to
achieve targets and earnings expectations.

revenue transactions recorded during the year.
For such samples, verified the underlying
documents such as invoices, receipts etc.

Considering the above, we have identified | « Tested the adequacy of disclosures relating to
revenue recognition as a key audit matter. the revenue recognition in the financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Managemant and Board ot Lirectors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends ta liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whoie are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

thess financial statemenits.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a matsrial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn, If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit liiwdiirgs, induding any significeanl defivienoies n inbe gl eonliy)
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the back-up of certain
Page 5 of 15
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

softwares/applications which form part of the ‘books of account and other relevant books and
papers in electronic mode’ have not been maintained on the servers physically located in India.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph in "Annexure B” with respect
to adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors on various dates taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of dccounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any iong-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 43(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™,
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 43(vi} to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity{ies}, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

e.

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} of Rule 11(e}, as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither daclared nor paid any dividend during the year,
Page 6 of 15
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BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

f.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(18) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForBSR& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/AW-100022

-/ '
'9!‘ hweta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509882
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23509822BGWIUN 1494
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

() (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

®
(i) (b)

©

(d

(e

(i) (a)

(b)

(iil)

()

(v)

(vi)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovabie properties disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company. However, original title deeds are under lien
with banks for the loan facilities availed by the Company. Therefore, we could not verify those
title deeds. However, we have received independent confirmation from security trustee.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the recards of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or Intangible Assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for helding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Propery
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the vear. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were maore than 10% in the aggregate of each class

of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from financial institution on the basis of security of
current assets. As informed to us and as per the terms of sanction letter of such limits, there is
no requirement on the Company to subrit quarterly returns or statements with such bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii}(a) to 3(ii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. i

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(vii) (a)

(b)

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
rendered by the company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Value added
tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, or Cess or other statutory dues
have been generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities
though there have been slight delays in few cases of Provident Fund, Employee State
Insurance, Professional tax and Goods and Service tax. Further in respect of tax deducted at
source and interest on Goods and services tax, the Company has been irregular in depositing
the sum due throughout the year and the amount involved is Rs. 53.46 millions and 1.56 millions
respectively,

As informed to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, ne undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Value added tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of
Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of
maore than six months from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Due Date of

statute dues (Rs. in which the date payme
millions) amoun nt

relates

Tho Employoos’ | Nrovident fund 0.1 March 2019 | 15 April | Mot yet

Provident Funds | (Additional 19 paid

And liability due to

Miscellaneous Supreme Court

Provisions Act, Judgement)

1952

The Income tax TDS Liability 11.98 March-22 to | Various | Not yet

Act, 1961 August-22 dates paid

The Income tax Interest on TDS 0.62 March-22 to | Various | Not yet

Act, 1961 August-22 dates paid

Central Goods Interest liability 1.18 July 2017 to | Various | Not yet

and Service on GST reversal August-22 dates paid

Act,2017 and

State Goods and

Service Act,2017

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax
{GST"), Value Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, (ncome-Tax, Cess or
other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute.
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BSR & Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(wiii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

()

(d

(e}

)

(0 (@)

(b)

(x)) (a)

(b

{©

{xii}

{xiii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company also has interest free loan having nominal amount of Rs,
315.25 millions from the holding company, repayable at the option of the Company and
accordingly classified as "Other equity". As this loan is repayable at the option of the Company,
there has been no default in repayment thereof. Further, the Company alse has an interest
bearing loan amounting to Rs. 899.92 miillions from the holding company which is repayable
after 5 years from the date of disbursement. Accordingly, there has been no default in repayment
of principal or interest thereof,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the
company has used funds raised on short term basis aggregating to Rs. 115.78 millions for long-
term purposes.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable,

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023, Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and expianations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12} of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financlal Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(xiv} (a)

(b)

()

(xvi) (@)
(b)
(©

()
(xvii}
(xviii)

{xix)

the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compiiance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according fo the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi){d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 353.26 millians in the current financial year and
Rs. 563.78 millions in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 38 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March
2023. Further, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2023

by Rs. 760.81.

Further, it explains the management's assessment of going concern assumption and its
assertion that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going
concern i.e. continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its
assets, for the foreseeable future.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a pericd of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

() The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3{xx)(a) and 3{xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firnt's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

)

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509882
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23509822BGWIUN1494
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesald financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)th) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ascent Hotels
Private Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the material weakness described in S No. 1 of the *Basis for
Qualified Opinion™ section of our report below on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria,
the Company has, in all materiai respects, maintained adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note") and except for the effects/
possible effects of the material weaknesses described in S No. 1 and 2 of the “Basis for Quaiified Opinion”
section of our report below on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of 31 March

2023,
We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported below in determining the nature,

timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 31 March 2023 financial statements of the Company,
and the material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weaknesses have been identified as at as at 31 March 2023:-

1. The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system in regard to measurement of
Optionally convertible redeemable debentures in accordance with IND AS 109 which has resulted in
restatement of the corresponding figures refating to year end 31 March 2022 and as at 1 April 2021
in the financial statements for the year snded 31 March 2023.

2. The Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in respect of General
Information Technology Controls (GITCs) and automated Information Technology Application
Controls over the Company's Opera Application software were not operating effectively as at 31
March 2023. This could potentially result in understatement / overstatement of revenue from
operations in the Company’s financial statements..

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with

reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of refiable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial stataments. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our qualified audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due o ervor or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of

Yo
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

o

b

f@}usﬁweta Kumar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509882
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23509822BGWIUN1494
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN USSI0IMHZ00SPTC] 54475

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(Al amounts 1 {npees anfftons, wnrlesy oreraise srated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plani and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Othez intangible assets
Financial assets
Qtiber financial assets
Deferred 1ax assets (net)
Other tax assets [net)
Other non-current assets
Teotal non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cagh and cash equivalents above
Other financial assets
(Hher current assets
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital
(hher equity

Teotal equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Labilines
Bomowings
Provisions
Other non-curreni liabilities
Total non- current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables

~ total omstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
- total ouistanding dues of ceeditors other than micro enterprises and

smail enterprises
Other financial liabilities

Other current labilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Total liabitities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIARILITIES

* The comparative information is reslated (refer note 44}

The notes from Nolte 1 to Note 47 form an inlegral part of these financial statements

As per our repart of even dale attached

tor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accammams
LCAL Firm Registration No.: 10124 8WwW-100022

_,r@’;ﬁ

wetn Kumar
Pariner
Membership No ; 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date : 17 Auguzi 2023

Mote

W

LI - I Y

1A

LB
12
13

14
15

16
17
18

Furand on behalf of Board of Directors of’

Ascent Hotels Private Limited

I Hrector
DIN: 06813081

Place: Gurugram
Dae; 17 Auvgust 2023

As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 1 April 2021
R . (R i
2,896.02 306953 3,244 58
64.00 64.00 64.00
117 (] 160
2367 3507 3578
2285 16.71 11.73
010 - 012
3.007.81 3,159.71 3,357.79
212 734 835
5288 .70 R.80
63 84 4790 6144
50.74 E =
758 1238 17 46
233d 19.83 2516
212,50 112.15 121,71
3.220.31 3.301.86 347950
1.273.01 1,278.01 1.278.01
3.561.68) (3.039.15) (2.281.73)
(1,233.67) (1,761.14) {1,003,72)
4.397 31 4,363 90 2847 44
336 347 3.66
13000 140.83 151.71
4,530.67 4,508.20 3,002.81
336,13 3206 92825
19.48 14,05 665
204.08 140.03 119.05
326,63 19 64 352 44
84.70 66.82 TILT0
229 220 2.32
973.31 554.80 LAB041
£,503.95 5,063.00 4,483,212
3.220.31 3.31.86 3,479.50
s
-

Keavarty

rector

DIiN: 08539291

Place: Gurugram
Date : 17 Aupusi 2023

b

\\y

Nikita Bhura
Cennpany Seereigry
Vembership No: AC53505¢

Place: Gurugram
Date : 17 August 2023



Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101 MH2005PTC154475

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Af amounts in Rupees millions. unifess otherwise stared)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2013 31 March 2022
{Restated)*
Income
Revenue from operations 24 941.25 349.37
Other income 25 10.02 4.67
Total income 951.27 354.04
Expenses
Cost of raterials consumed 26 95.00 43,35
Employee benefits expense 27 143.25 9463
Other expenses 30 441.37 257.66
679.62 395.84
Earnings/(loss} before finznce cost, depreciation, amortisation and tax 271.65 (41.80)
Finance costs 28 616.39 53774
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 177.57 177.49
793.96 715.23

Loss before tax {522.31) {757.03)
Tax expense 7

Current tax - -

Deferred tax . -
Loss lor the year {522.31) (757.03)
Other Comprehensive loss
frems that wifl not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement gain/{loss} on defined benefit obligations 27 (0.22) (0.40)
- [ncome tax relating to items mentioned above - -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax {0.22) {0.40}
Total comprehensive loss for the year (522.53) {757.43)
Earnings/(losses) per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each): 31
Basic (INR) 4.09 (3.92)
Diluted {INR) {4.09 (5.923
* The comparative information is restated (refer note 44),
The notes from Note 1 to Note 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

_ e
For BSR & Co.LLP Forand on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis Ascent Hotels Private Limited
ICAl Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 (
N \ fn~

L

s
A7
7 AShweta Kumar : Tanya Chakravarty
Partner Director Direcior
DIN: 06813081 DIN: 08339291

tembership No.: 509822
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram
Date : 17 August 2023

Date ; 17 Avgust 2023

Date : 17 August 2023

Nikitit Bhura
Company Secresary
Membership No.; ACS33054

Place: Gurugram
Date : |7 August 2023



Ascenl Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101 MH2005PTC 154475

Sqatemeat of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
A amcnzeny e Bipees aveffions, ifexs otferi ise xtated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{Restated)*
A.  Cash Nows from operating activities
Loss before tax (52231 175700
Adjustments:
Depreciation and armortisation expense 17757 17750
Liabilittes / provisions no lomger required writlen back (538) {0 54)
Loss allowance for rade receivables 49% 004
Gain on disposal of proparty, plant 2nd equipment 0402) .
Finance cosis 61639 57
Inigrest income {4.16) (379
Governmeni grant wrilien off - 073
Unrealised lass on forefge exchange fluciuation (net) 485 211
Operzting cashllows before working capital changes 271L.H (43.25)
(Increase Mdecrease in inventories (178) 151
(Increase) in rade receivables {33 14} (15 96)
Decrease in other financial asseis 639 451
{Mncrease Mdecrease in other assels [ER-10] 544
Increase in trade payables 63 15 26 84
In¢reasef{decrease) in caber lizbilities 1040 {48
(Decrease) in provisions (023) 071}
| sei{d Jin other fi ial liabilities 1107 (564
Cash generated from/ {used in) operations 33843 (32.12)
Income 1axes (paid) - net {5 62) 5 00)
Nel cash generated fromAused in} operating sctivities (A} 329.31 (37.13)
B.  Cash Nows [rom investing activilies
Purchase of property, plant and equip and other i ible assels {3 86} 226}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment ons -
Bank deposits maured 20173 603 40
Bank deposits made (235 54) (605 00y
Interest receved 238 203
Net cash used in investing activities (B) {35.04) (0,93}
€. Cash Now from Mnancing activities
Proceeds from long-Lerm borrowings 4234 06 93550
Repayment of long-term borrowings {31208 (934 34)
Intercorporate borrowings received (vom holding company a1 42 808 50
Finance costs paid (477 26) (754 58)
Net cash (used in)/generated from finamcing activities (C) (273.82) 24,53
Net increased(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 20.94 {13.53)
Cash and cash equivalenis ar the beginning of the year 4790 4144
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 63.54 47.90
Asal As al
Motes te cash flow statement 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i Components of Cash and cash equivalenis
Cash on hand 633 gi1o
Balances with bznks
~ LN CUITEN] 30CaUnLs 60 a7 15
- in deposit {with original of 3 monihs or less) 47 1 055
6884 47.90




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN USST01 MH2M05PTC154475

Statemsead of Cash Flows for tbe year ended 31 March 2023
(AR ameunees 1 Nupees mifftons, afess offenive stafed)

Wi, Movement in finascial liabilities - Borvowings inclodimg accrued interest and unamoriised premiwn on optionatly convertible red e deb =]
For the yenr ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cpening Balamee 4.840.60 4,278.29
Changes from linancing cash Mows
Proceeds from nan-current borrowings 51548 1.743 99
Repayment of nan-current borrowings {31205) 1934 84)
Finance cost paid (477 26) {784 58)
Other oon cash changes
Finance cosl expense 616 39 3T
Closing Balance 5.183.17 4,840.60

lil.  The Cash Flows from operating activities section in Siatemem of Cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the ‘Indirect Method' as sevout in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"

* The comparalive informalion is restated (refer note 44)
The nates from Note | 10 Note 47 form an integral part of these lnancial siatemenis

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Direciors of
Chartered Accimianes Aacent Hotels Priviite Limited
ICAL Firm Registration No 101 248W/W- 100022

Nikita Bhura
{enmpany Secretary
Membership Mo ACS35054

Rajaf Mehra
Threcten

Lewrter
Menibership No 509822 DIN 06813081

Place Qurugram Place; Gurugram Place Gurugram Place Gurugram
Date 17 Augost 2023 Date 17 August 2023 Dawe |7 Augus 2023 Dale 17 August 2023
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

Ascent Hotels Private Limited (“the Company’) is a company domiciled in India. The Company was
incorporated in India on 05 July 2005 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and is limited by

shares.

The Company is a hotel development and investment company with focus on operating internationally
branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent,

Presently, the Company has one hotel under it (Hyatt Regency, Pune) which is operational.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A.

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s
Board of Directors on 17 August 2023,

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement Basis

Financial assets and liabilities i.e., Fair Value
derivative instruments

Also refer note 38 for going concern basis of accounting used by the management.
Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty
about the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to
the carrying value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods

affected.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

The following are the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements:

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Useful lives, recoverable amounts and impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are based on estimates and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future
cash flows, obsolescence, demand, competition, known technological advances. The Company reviews
the useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the
end of each reporting date.

iif) Employee benefit obligations

iv)

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices
in active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models
aiv lahen fivi ubser valle mathels wliere pussible, but wlkete this is nul feasible, & degiee of judguent
is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments. Also, refer note 35 for further disclosures.

Recognition of Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax
asset is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

E. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- 1t is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively.
All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly
to the Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
n the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lighilit
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1)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the

inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or Hability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 35

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase

price,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value
only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses

are incurred,
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). Further, leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of lease term and their useful lives. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals} is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to) the date on which
the asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset Category* Useful Life Useful life as per
(Years) Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013
(Years)
Building 15-60 60
Computers and accessories 3-6 3-6
Plant and machinery 5-20 15
Furniture and fixtures 5-8 10
Vehicles 8 8
Office equipment 5 3

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined
that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets. Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different
from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company had elected to use the fair value of all the items of property, plant and equipment on the
date of transition i.e. 1 April 2015, and designate the same as deemed cost. Fair value was determined
by obtaining an external third-party valuation, a level 3 valuation technique.
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2) Intangible assets

3)

i

Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the
specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Company represent computer software. Computer software are amortized using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years). The amortization
period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected
useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is
changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.,

Financial asseis

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets (except trade receivable without a significant financing component) are initially
recognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally its transaction price (that is, the fair value of
the consideration given or received). However, if there is a difference between the transaction price and
the fair value of financial instruments whaose fair value is based on a quoted price in an active market
or a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the Company recognizes the
difference as a gain or loss at inception (“day 1 gain or loss). In all other cases, the entire day 1 gain or
loss is deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the transaction until
the transaction matures or is closed out. A trade receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

& Co
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it.  Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost
- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are 1

Y\OTEQ idered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the as & CQ
o ¢
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Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and forthecre d i t risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features:

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse

features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecogaition is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets
at amortised cost

Lebt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under
at FVOC! the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCL. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.
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iti. Derecognition

.

Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially ail of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred

assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Interest free loans

Vi,

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such
loans. The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised
as equity component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at
amortised costs and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification
in the terms of such loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it
becoming perpetual debt such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been
treated as other equity.

Modification of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets:
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the

modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

[f the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
odification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
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4

recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantiaily different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

A. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of

the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months),

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
cognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
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supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-

looking estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying

amount of the assets,
For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI,

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts

due.

B. Impairment of non-financial assets
The catrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit) {CGU}.

An impatrment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated, if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU

(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable-amou
\'\OTE(‘S' \
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5)

7)

8)

a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's camrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had

been recognised.
Inventories

Inventories which comprises stock of food and beverages (including liquor), operating supplies and
stock-in-trade are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises all
costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and
condition. In determining the cost, first in first out ("FIFO") method is used. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs to make the sale.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i)
the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be
received.

Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme
The grant or subsidy received to compensate the import cost of assets, subject to an export obligation
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in ratio of fulfilment of associated export obligations.

Service Exports from India scheme (SEIS)

The scheme entitles the Company to receive SEIS licenses basis the annua! earnings in foreign currency.
These licenses can be utilised by the Company or sold in the market. The grant is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis at realizable value.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best cstimatcs at each reporting date.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

9) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by
the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition and/or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended in the period during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than
temporary interruption. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

10) Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-
gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee
state insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution
already paid is less than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date, the deficit payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined berefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market
yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to
the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income
d are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
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resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past
service cost,

(c¢) Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

11) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the
Company has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the

passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing,
the same is presented as Unbilled revenue.

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under
an obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and recreation services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services relating to hotel
operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food and beverages which
is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and other services have been
provided as per the contract with the customer.

12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.
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The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

13) Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit
or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or

loss on a net basis.

14) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and cuirent tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss at the time of the transaction.
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available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises 2 deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets —unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets and Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or such
tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

15) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM).

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to
the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that
engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components.

16) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti -
dilutive.

17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

2.5Co
% ©
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18) Measurement of earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has ¢lected to present earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and
tax (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of profit and loss. The Company
measures EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the measurement, the
Company does not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense, exceptional items and
tax expense.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

5 Non-current financial assets - Others As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Bank deposits due to mature afier 12 months from the reporting date* # 14.15 29.97
Security deposits 9.79 8.75
Less: Interest accrued on security deposits (0.27 0.31)
Less: current security deposits : (9.34)

23.67 38.07

* including interest accrued on fixed deposits INR 1.23 (31 March 2022 - INR 0.86)
# Includes deposits under lien amounting to INR. 12,92 (31 March 2022 - INR 29,11)

6  Income tax assets (net)

Tax deducted at source 22.85 16.71
22.85 16.71
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T Income by Far the yoar ended For Lhe s cur ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A: The major compancnis of inCome 1ax cxpense are (Restuted)*
Recopnised in profii or boss
Current tax
Deferred 1ax
B. Reconcifiztion of effeclive tax rate {tay cxpense and the accounsing prof muliiplied by Comyiany 's domesic tas rate)
For the year emded Far the yeuwr eided
3 Murch 223 31 March 2022
{Restaicd)”
Percenipe Al Pereenlaps Amount
Loss before 1as 32230 (TET 05
Tat weng the Campany s demesnue @y rne 2517 HEIE 1] 1507 [ I 74y
Tax cffect of:
Non recognion of defemed 1axes asscl on ieuporan dilerences {2474 12712 [quchesy] 17605
Mon-tdedurible txpenses 30y (.1 Lnsy 795
Oihers 1 13) 0 fuls (1931 7
Elfcctive tuy raic F - -
The Company has adopled new 1as regine under cocion | 15BAA of [he Ingome a5 Ao 1Ml w el FY 20]0.20
C. Defersed tax ussels / liabilities
Ay al As at
Deferred tux assels 31 March 2923 3 March 12
IRestaled)™
Linabzarbed business bosses md dep 1252 7 i3 27
Disalipuancs wy 138 of Income-tas Aer. 15431 107 80 Wi
Loss allowance For trade reeeiables b 133
Pran 1sion Fof emphoyoe benedils 1% Xy
Oithers 123 1.0
1366, 5% 1. 25881
Deferrzy can linbiiles
Proporty. plont and cquap Capial wowk-u-progress and Oler bk EELE W D 5
Oplcnalls consemible redeemable debenturs (OCR D3 1% 16 55
30563 ML
Net Deferred ax assel 27002 B1LH
Drelerred tax assel not recopniscd* 070,93 40T
Deferred 14 assel recognised .
*As an 1o end, the Compam has fi 1 dep and carmy forvard business logses a5 per Ingome Tax Acl 1960 Deforred 1ax assers have not boen recogrizad. because 115 nol probable thal Ruture @sable prodit will be an alable

atrungt which entity can wsc the benelil ilercirom
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AN anrownis wr Rupeds mufltons irfess stferurse tited)

D. Movcmend o iemporany dilferences
¥ March 2023

Balames 2 ul Deferred 1ax diferences Deferred 1y dilferences Ealunce a5 al
1 April 2022 generaicd but not generated due 16 31 March 2023
recogndsod during 2022.23  posfatemeni of Optiomaly
Partitulars eomvertible redeemalile
debemiures {CCRD) bust
=01 recopnisod in viber
equiny during ME22-23
Doferved tan auacts
Unobsorhed bugsincss losses ond deprecranon 113527 174 1,252 76
Loss albowance for trade reccisables 13 I 23 -
[hsalk ws 4B gl b tas Act. 1G] Q0 X7 -3 107 g0
Pron iga0u [or eniplenco benalins 217 iz - P L
Cihtrs (K] {4 123
123841 127.74 166,58
Delevred Lax (iabiliies
Peapers. planl and Capital work-i and Intangible assets (31 36) + 1 (3T 8D
Opuonalh. conyertible redeemable debemures (OCRDs) il 333 [EpI] {19 813
(39711} L35 s (30543
el deferred Lax asact 1R 119,33 97092
et ey
31 March 2022
Balance us at Deferred dax diferences Deferred lux differences Bulance a6 m
1 April 2021 gencrated bul nol meneraied duc 19 31 March 222
rrcogniscd during 202822 restatemen] of Dptinnalh
Paricwlars cons oelible redecmabic
debrmures (OCRD bul
Dol recognised in oLhee
equity during 2e29.22
Deferred tars asscis
Unabsorbed business boss and depreeuien RO Gl 4147 113527
Loss pllowance for doubiful debis 132 auw 133
Drsalt w438 of | Aen, 1M 162 79 (715 9
Fron ien for craployes benelins 245 028 nz?
Others - ] - KT
106515 172.66 - 123881
Dederred tas lighilitics
Propens. ploni and equip Capual work-in-propress and L bic assels Fet IR kY - - (3820 350
Opuomall comwernble redecmioble debennures (OCRDY 167 333 (39 75 (1654}
36I1.75) 339 (32.75) (397,11}
Net deferred tas ussel TIHAl 176,05 139.75) BH. M
E. Tux Lossta carried foroand
Tax bosses fot which oo delferod @y assed was resogmised willy expin dotes are as fallows
Ax Al
31 March 2023
A mduni Eapiry Druie
{Finuncial ¥ear)
Bustncss boss 359 06 2u3o-3
Busuness boss ERFD 12930
Business bass K2 20283
Butiness loss ] 0274
Busincss loss 458 202627
Blusuicas 1oss Lalvil] 202326
Unabaorbed deprecuiion Ao Mever esplre
Ayl
31 Mareh 222
Amaunt Expiny Dute
(Financial ¥ ear)
Buzaness boss ¥33m 202034
Busincss boss gzl HER.2D
Bumness boss . hlick s 4
Busuncss boss 4 58 te-27
Busiess loss B3 202520
Unabsorbed deprecwion 3260 1% Mever eupine

*The compardive mnlome eon 1 restaed frefior nole -H
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PATF comcanmtis et Roighees pnilflaoesy. nmbes enthrerinse steileel)

& Other nof-curient assels Al al Assl
i feenred, contsrcdered goad) 31 March 2023 3 March 2022
Adlvanees pdher than copiiad ady anecs
Prepaid expenses (R 11]
i
9 Insenitortes Agal Ag ut
ivalinedd oo e fomer of com comid Aot readeihle rodnet 31 March M123 30 March 2ot
Bevorages 73l
T.H
Carmy ing amount of tenterics pledpnd as soourny For babiliies INR 9 12 ¢ 31 March 2022 - INR 734y
10 Cwrrend Tinuncist assets - Trade recei ables As al Ag al
tEirsecnireeli 31 March 223 3 March 22
Trade recenablos
-Comsidercd pood 4402 i 9
-Credu wpaired Sk 527
Uibilked ren cmue *
Consudered good 1349 #51
a3 007
Loas allowmancs 1141234 {520
A1 24,70
ay Refier Mot H for dues from rekaied parues
b} The Company's expesure 1o credu 2ud comency nsks. and loss allowaces relited Lo rade reeen ables are disclosed m Nots 13
* Mat of advance fren costomers of INR 4 19 (31 March 2022 - ¥R 9 61y
Trae ivahile upcing schedule
M s
Dutstanding for follow ing peaods from the idfote of transaction
Particulars 1mbilicd resenue Lass Ihan 6 monihs & manths - | yeur 1-2xecars 2.3 youns Marz (han 3 ycars Tol
i} Lndaoured erade recervables — considercd pood 1349 G 3% i 1§ (1] i (N1 5251
1y Undigpured ieade receiyahhes — crodit impaired . - [ - [Tk 314 3460
Tanal 1340 J650 [ 1] L1 Lig 530 3.1
As b 31 Macch Hiz2
Outstanding five fallow ingg peciols fram the dute of transaction
Particulars Unhifled reyvenue Less thun fi manthy 6 months - 1 year -3 years 2. Jveurs More than 3 vears Toaal
11 Undisputed urade recenables — sonsidered good 25 1562 1l nis (5] 0 ns 2T
L) Uinidisputed teade receivables —credit impaited - - ({3 oy 134 3 3% 537
Total 53] 15.62 L (N2 1.92 343 29.97

Tt company does nol has e any dispated ducs which arc roceivables as 21 31 March 2023 aud 31 March 322,
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1A Current finzncial assets - Cash and cash eguivalents

Balances with banis

- ON CUITENt &ccounts

- on deposit accounts {with original maturity of 3 months or less)*
Cash on hand

As at
31 March 2023

As al
31 March 2022

* including interest accrued on fixed deposits INR 0.06 (31 March 2022 - INR 0.03)

118 Current financial assets - bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above

Bank deposits with ariginal maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months *

* including interest acerued on fixed deposits INR 0.74 (31 March 2022 - INR Nil}

12 Current financial assets - Others
{Unsectred)

Recoverable from government authorities and others

20.60 47.15
4791 .56
033 019
68,84 47.90
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
50.74
50.74 -
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

-Considered good 751 1173
-Credit impaired - 305
7.31 14.78
Loss allowance - (3.05)
Security deposits # 027 0.65
7.58 12.38
# includes interest accroed on security deposit INR 0.27 ¢ 31 March 2022 - INR 0.30)

13 Other current assets As a2t As at
{Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Staff advance = 018
Advance to suppliers ER]] 350
Balance with statutory authorities 772 728
Prepaid expenses * 1211 3.86

23.34 19.83

* includes current portion of non-current prepaid expenses amounting to INR 6,92 (31 March 2022 - INR Nil)
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14  Equity share capitat As at As at
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Equiry shares of INR 10 each 130,000,000 1,300 00 130,000,000 1,300, 00
130,10, 000 1.300,00 130, HH,000 150000
Issmed, subscribed and fully pak up
Equuity shares of [NR 10 each 127,801 436 1,278 01 127,801,486 1,272.0)
127,501 486 1.278.1 127,801,486 1.278.01
a} Reconciliation of the equity shares outstandiag a1 the begimming and at the end of reporiing year
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the ysar 127.801.4386 1.278 01 127 801 486 127301
Add  Iszued during the year - - - -
Balance al ihe end of the year 127,801,486 1,278.01 127,801 486 1,278.00

) Righis, preferences and restrictions atiached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of TNR 10 per share Each holder of equity share is enutled 16 one vore per share The equity shares are entitled 1o receive dividend a3 and when
declared In the evemt of hquidation of the Company, de holder of equiry sharss wall be ennitled 10 recerve remarmng assets of the Company, afier distrtbulion of all preferential amounts The distribution will be in
praporiion to the number of equiy shares held by the shareholders

¢} Shares hetd by holding/ or their subsidiaries/ assaciater
As at As

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Name of sharsholder Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amomnt
Equity shares
SAMH] Hotels Limuted = 127 201 456 127801 137,800,486 1,278 01
d) Names of the shareholders holding more than 5% of class of shares
Name of sharcholder As at As al
Equity shares 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Number of shares %o of shares Number of shares %o of shares
127,801,486 100%. 127301 486 108G

SAMHI Hotels Linaied®
* hr Gyana Das holds | equiry share 25 a normines shareholder

€} No shares have been alloted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares or boughi back during the period of five vears immediziely preceding 1he balance sheel date

) Refer nowe |6 for shares reserved i respect to Optional ble Red ble Deb [(OCRDs)
) Refer note 34 for shares pledged by hotding company in respect of bomowings

h) Dedails of sharey held by promoters

As ar 31 March 2023
No. of shares at Change durmmg the  No. of shares a1 the % change dering
S.no Promoter Name the beginning of *& of Total Shares
year cad of the year e year
the year
I SAMHI Hotels Limned (Holding company) 127 801,986 - 127,801 486 100

As at 31 March 2022

No. of shares at , . .
S0 Promoter Name the beginning of Change during the  No. of shares at the %o of Total Shares * change during
year end of the year 1he year
the year
I SAMBL Hotels Limited {Holding company) 127801 ,486 - 127,801 486 100

@
cn| Gurugram %
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fAH conovnis i Rupees milfions, unfesy otherwise steted)

15 Other equity As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{Restated)*
Securities premium 1,048 85 1,045 85
Retained eamings (4,925 7% (4,403 26)
Equity component of interest free loans from Holding Company 31525 31525
(3,561.68) (3,039.15)
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,048.85 1,048.85
Add : Additions made during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,048.85 1,048.85

Securities premium is used 10 record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{Restated)*

b} Retained earnings
Balance ai the beginning of the year (4,403 26} (3,803.76)
Changes due 10 prier period correction (refer note 44) - 15793
Loss for the year (522.3N) {73703
Transferred from other comprehensive income 022) (0. 40)
Balance at the end of the year (4,925.79) (4,403.26)
Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated prafits/{losses) of the Company
¢) Equity component of interest free loans from Holding Company
Balance at the beginning of the year 31525 31525
Add ; Additions made during the year - -

31525 31525

Samhi Hotels Limited {Holding company) has pranted loan in the year 2021-22, where loan is perpetual debt with nil rate of interest and option 10 repay the loan is with
the company. Accordingly the same is classified as equity

d) Other comprihensive loss (net of tax)- Remeasurement of defined benefit liability / asset
Balance at the beginning of the year
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (net of tax)

Transferred to retained earnings
Balance at the end of the year

{0.22) {040}
0.22 040

This represents the remeasurements of defined benefit hability and comprises actuarial gains and losses
* The comparative informalion is restated (refer note 44}

. ."‘urugram(-ra
o e
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fAIF amaounts w Rupees mitfions, nnless otherwise stated)

16

a)

Non-current financial liabilities - Borrowings As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Restated)™

From bank (secured) {refer 'b' below)

Tenm loan § 8137 10213
Erom financial mstitutions {secured) (refer '¢* below)

Term loan** 385152 3.679.52

3,932.89 3,781.65

Cptionally convertible redeemable debentures (OCR D) (unsecured) (refer 'a’ below) 84 .70 86 80
31 March 2023: 6,726,394, 31 March 2022: 6,726,394 OCRDs of INR 100 each held by Vascon Engineers Limited
Loan from holding company (unsecured) * 1,024.75 £20.49
Less: Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note 21) (308 90) (1298)
Less: Current inaturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 19) 1336.13) (312.06
Total 4,397.31 4,363.90

$ including inferest accrued but not due on term loan from bank amounting to INR 0.60 (31 March 2022 - INR 0 13}

** including interest accrued but not due on term loan from financial institation amounting te INR 30830 (31 March 2022 - INR 272.35)
* meluding interest acerued but not due on [oan from holding company amounting to INR 124 83 (31 March 2022 - {1.98)

* The comparative information is restated {refar note 44)

Terms and conditions of Optional Convertible Redeemable Debentures (OCRDs) (unsecured)

In March 2016, the Company issued 5 896,566 OCRDs with a face value of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 35 23 each and 829,828 OCRDs with a face value of INR 10 each
at a premium of [NR 35,19 gach to Vascon Engineers Limited.

Redemption
a) The OCRDs are redeemable on 1 April 2036

b) Terms of Redemption -
i) The OCRDs are redeemable for an amount equivalent to the fair market value of such number of equity shares as are equivalent to | 43 times the number of OCRDs in case lhe

Company achigves the target of EBITDA of INR 70 Crores in any financial year prior to 1 Aprii 2036, or
ii} The OCRDs are redeemable for an amount equivalent 1o the fair market value of such number of equity shares as are equivalent the number of OCRDs in case the Company
does not achieve 1he targel of EBITDA of INR 70 Crores in any financial year prior to | April 2036

Cenversion
a) The OCRDs can be converted at the option of the subscriber at any lime after 1 April 2021

b) Terms of Conversion -
i) The OCRDs will be converted into equity shares in the ratic of 1:1.43 in case he Company achieves the larget of EBITDA of INR 70 Crores in any financial year prioc to date

of exercise of opbon 1o convert

1) In any other case, the OCRDs will be converted into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1

The effective inlerest rate on OCRDs is 7 .21% per annum

March 2016 (Date of
issue)
Proceeds from issue of OCRDs 304 20
Less: Fair value of QCRDs * {87 54)
Unzmortised premium on QCRDs 216.66
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

CCRDs balance at the beginning of the year 86 20 ol 87
{GainyLoss recogmised i statement of profit and loss (2.10) 3493
54.70 86,80

OCR.Ds balance at the end of the year

* The derived fair value has been calculated based on the present value of expected cashflows/ convertible value of OCRDs on maturily {Level 3} Significan! unobservable
inputs for measurement of fair value include EBITDA multiple, EBITDA growth rate and discount rale

The Company did not have any continuing defauits as on the balance sheet date in the repayment of loans and interest. There have been no material loan covenant defaulis and
there has been ne intimation from the banks/ financial institutions for recalling any loan facility
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited
CIN USS100MH2HSPTCI54475

Notes to Lve Fnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
LA amesiis 1 Rupess mafions, wufess offenvise statvd)

|7 Non current Provisions

Provision lor empoyee benefits
Gratuity {Refer noce 27)

Compensated absences (Refer nole 27)

18 Ouher non-currewt linbilities

) A hle deh

(OCRDs)y #

Unamonised premium on opti

As al Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I 54 150
| B2 143
3.36 3.47
As al As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{Restaied)*
13000 14083
130,00 140.85

# The difference between the fair value at innal recognition (the transaction price) and the value that would have been derived had valuation lechniques been applied at inilial recogniion, less

subsequeni releases, is as follows

Unamartised balance as at the beginning of the year

din <
A in

Non-curreat portion
Current portion

r of Profit and Loss
Unamonised balance as a1 the end of the year

* The comparative information 15 restated (refer nowe 44)

19 Curremt financial liabithies - Borrowings

Current maturities of long-erm borrawings (refer note |6)

20 Current financial liabilities - Trade payables

151 66 162 49
(1083 {1083)
[d0.83 151.66
L3000 140,83

10,83 L0.83

Asal
36 March 2023

33613

As at
31 March 2022

1246

336,13

3206

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

- tonal outstanding dues of micro enierprises and small enterprises (MSME) 1943 1405
- 1onal outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enlerprises 204 08 140 03
223.56 154.08
a) Refer note 37 for Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises Devetopment Act, 2006 {MSMED)
by Refer note 34 for dues to related panies
¢} The Company's ¢xposure 10 currency and liquidity risks relaied 10 1rade payables is disclosed note 35
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for fdllowing periods fcom ihe dale of transaction
Particulars Accrued Expences | Less than | vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 years Total
(11 MSME - 1573 075 - - 10.48
{ii} Others 70 05 59 73 2861 24 M4 10 98 204.090
Todal T.05 88,46 29,36 244 10.% 223.57
As at 31 March 2022
Qutstanding lor following periods [rom the date of ir
Particulars Accrued Expenses | Less than | vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Teal
0} MSME - 1370 021 o1l 003 14.05
fii} Others 4799 50 59 2397 1001 ray 140.03
Total 47.99 64,29 %18 10,11 250 1508
The company does ned have any disputed dues which are payable as a1 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
21 Correat financial liabilities - Others As at Asail
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Intesest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note 16) 30890 1293
Employee related payables 16 41 520
Payable for capital assers 12 0l
Security Deposil Teceived 120 134
326,63 19.64
22 Other currem liabidities As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{Restated)”
Advance from customers 954 19 66
Siawtory dues payable 44 33 3633
Unamortised premium on oplonally convenible redesmable debemurestOCRDs) (Reler note 18) 10,83 1083
$4.70 66,82
* The comparative information is restated (refer note 44)
23 Currenl provisions As at Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision lor employze benelils
ratuity {Refer note 27} 06 135
125 0835
2,29 2.0




Ascent Hotels Privace Limited

CIN USS101 MH200SPTC 154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
LAl amownis m Rupees unillions, unfess otherise stoled)

24

15

26

Revenue from operations For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sale of services
- Room revenue 52710 182.19
- Food and beverage revenue 39107 159.10
- Recreation and other services 23.08 808
941,25 349.37

Contract Balances

The contract libilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance oblipalion is over/ services
delivered. Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfed. This includes advances received from the customer towards
cooms/restaurant/banquess. Revenue is recognised once the performance obligation is met i.e. on room stay/ sale of food and beverage / provision of banquet services

Excess of revenue over invoicing is recorded as unbilled revenue

For the year ended  For the yvear ended

31 March 2013 31 March 2022
Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers 29 54 19.66
Trade receivables 5288 24.70
Notes:-
1. Considering the nature of business of the Ciroup, the above contract liabilities are generally malerialised as revenue and trade receivables is converted ino cash within the same
operating cycle.

2 Revenue recognised in the stalement of profit and loss is same as the contracted price

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Orther income

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost

- on bank deposits 342 379
- on Secunity deposils 024 .
Liabilities/provision no longer required wrinen back 5.38 054
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 002 -
Interest on income tax refund 03] =
Rental income 032 035
Miscellaneous income 013 3
10.02 4.67
Cost of materials consumed ’ For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Consumption of food and beverages
Intventory at the beginning of the year 7.34 885
Add: Purchases during the year 95 78 42.04
Invenrory at the end of the year (9.12) (7.30)

95.00 43.55




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN L5101 MH2ZM0SPTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Macch 2023
(A amonnts vt Rupees smiffions, wnless otherntse siared)

17  Employee benefi p For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus 1283 1568
Contribution 1o provident fund and other funds (refer 'a* below ) 820 in
Compensated absences (refier b’ below) 334 1.79
Gramity expense {refer ‘c' below} 054 0.6%

Staff welfare expenses 18,32 7.76
143.25 94.63

a. Defined Contribution plans

The Company's employees provident fund scheine and employee stale insutance scheme are defined contribution plans. A sum of INR 820 (31 Macch 2022 - INR 5.71) has been

recogmised as an expense in relation 1o the schemes and shown under Employee benefits expense in profit or foss. Also refer nole 32

b. Compensated absences

The Principal ptions used in detennining the comp b benefit oblization are as given below:
For the year ended For the vear ended
Particulars 31 March 2022
%i
Diseounting rare 4.45
6.00

Salary growth rate

c. Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has complered Rve years or more of service pets a gratvity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary} for

each complered year of service. The scheme is not funded

The following rables sumnmarise the commponents of net benefit expense recopnised in profil or loss and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the said plan:

a) Expense recognised in Profit or Loss

For the year ended

Far the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 0.39 .51
Inlerest cost 015 018
Total exy recognized in the St of profit and loss 0.54 0.69
b R recognized directly in other comprehensive income

For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- chanpes in A tal ptions (0.12) (0.03)
- changes in expenence adjustments 034 043
Amgunt recogoired in other comprehensive income 0.22 440
c) Change in present value of benefit obligation

For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year i 459
Currenl service cost 039 051
Inrerest cost 0.15 018
Actuanial {gain)loss 022 G40
Benefits paid {1.50) {2.3)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 2,60 33
d) A to be recognized in Balance sheer

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of the defined benefir obligation at the end of the year 260 ERCT]
Eair value of plan assers at the end of the year - -
Funded status - .
Net Liabitity recognized in the Balance Sheet 2.60 3.34
Non-current 1.54 1.99
1 06 1.33

Current




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN UsS101 MHIMSPTCI 54475

Nates to the financial statentents for the year ended 31 March 2023
A amowms in Rupees wmiffons, wnfess orherwise siated)

¢) The Prineipal assumptions used in determining the gratuity benefic obligation are as given below

Asat As ar
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
% %
Discounting rate 706 445
6.00 6.00

Salary growh rate

The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Govemment bonds at the accounting dale with a term 1hat matches that of the liabilities.
The salary growth rate takes account of inflation, senjority, promotion: and other relevant factors on long term basis

As at As at
Demographic assumpiions 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Retiremenr Age {years) 58 58
Monality Table 100% of LALM (2012- 100% of IALM (201 2-

2014} 2014}
Withdrawal Rale e %
Apes
Up to 30 Years 52 52
From 31 to 44 Years 52 52
Above 44 Years 52 52
{f) The Company’s best estimate of expense for the next yearis INR | (3] March 2022 INR 1)
iiil. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 1o ane of the rel actuarial ptions.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
lncrease * Decrease * Increase * Decrease *

Discount rate (0.5% movement) {0.02) 002 {0.03) 0.03
Future salary growth (0.5% meovemnent) 002 (0.02) 0.03 on

Althouph the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of eash lows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown
* Positive ainount represents increase in proviston

* Megative amouni represenis decrease in provision

Sensilivity due ro withdrawl and mortality are not material

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 1 42 ysars (31 March 2022 1.40 years)

£) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligati
As at
Yesr 31 March 2023
April 2023 - March 2024 L.06
April 2024 - March 2025 073
April 2025 - March 2026 .35
Apnil 2026 - March 2027 18
April 2027 - March 2028 0,09
April 2028 - March 2029 004
April 2029 onwards 0.15
2.60
Asat
Year 31 March 2022
April 2022 - March 2023 1.35
April 2023 - March 2024 095
April 2024 - March 2025 047
April 2025 - March 2026 023
Apnil 2026 - March 2027 oz
April 2027 - March 2028 005
017

April 2028 onwards
334
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28 Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
M March 2022

(Restated)y*
[nterest expense on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
- Loans from banks and financial institntions 505.63 494 .85
- Optionally convertible redecmable debentures (OCRDM (Refer note 16,18 & 22) (1294 1411
- Others 113.42 13.31
Interest expense on delay in deposit of statutory dues 628 698
Other finance costs 4.00 8,49
616,32 £37.74
# net of amortisation of premium on Optionally convertible redeemable debentures {OCRD) amounting to INR 10 83 (31 March 2022 - INR 10 83)
* The cotnparative information is restated (refer note 44
23 Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 177.07 177.21
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.50 128
177.57 177.49
30 Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended

Repair and mainienance

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

- Building 11.55 649
- Machinery 10.35 4635
- Others 9.70 5129
Advertisement and business promotion 27.82 130
Cornrnission 2867 12 54
Communication 21.08 1844
Consumption of stores and supplies 32 1616
Contractual labour 42 60 1112
General administration expenses i.30 0.99
Insurance 5.07 iz
Legal and professional charges {refer nate 39) 34.11 3073
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 485 211
Government grant written off - 07
Management and incentive fees 3938 640
Payment to auditers {refer below)* 195 1.36
Power, fuel and water 12751 8226
Loss allowance for trade receivables 4.96 004
Rates and taxes 3173 3073
Rent {refer note 40) 006 0.06
Travelling and conveyance 627 1.56
Miscellancous expenses 1.29 085
441.37 157.66

*Payment to auditors

As auditors

Statutory audit 1.80 1.80
Reimbursement of expenses 0135 0.04
Other services 002
1,95 1.86

31 Earnings/(Losses) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the Joss for the year aitributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

year

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to the equity holders by weighied average number of equily shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive polential equity shares into equity shares

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Restated*
Nel loss attributable to equity sharcholders (52231) {757 03)
Weighted average numnber of equity shares for caleulation of basic EPS 127,801 486 127,800 485
Weighted average number of equity shares for caloulation of diluted EFS 127,801,486 127,801 436
Mominal value of equrty share (IME) 10 10
Basic eaming per share ([ INR} {4.09) (3.92)
Diluted eaming per share (INE )4 o {409 (552)
4 The outstanding potential equity shares have an anti-dilutive effect on EPS. Hence, the same have nbjbel: -.Llculation of Diluted earnings per share

* The comparative information is restated {refer note 443
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32

33

Contingent liabilities and commitments
fier the extent not provided far)

Contingent liabilities
The Company had received an assessment order for financial year 2016-17 whereby an addition of [NR 3997 had been made fo the total income of the Company. The addition

pertains to disallowance of expenditure claimed under Section 37{1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and disallowance of bonus under section 43(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, The
Company had filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) againsi the said addition, During 1he previous year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has settled 1he
matter urder the Vivad Se Vishwas Scheme (dispute resolutions scheme), Accordingly, PCIT has determined the amount of Rs. Nil payable to the Company via order passed on 09

November 2021
During the year, the Commissioner of [ncome-tax {Appeals) passed order on 30 June 2022 disposing off the appeal in view of setilement of matier under Vivad Se Vislwas Scheme

In February 2019, Supreme Court of India in its judgement clanified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure obligations under The Employees’ Provident
Funds And Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 The Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the application of judgement retrospectively and as

such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods

Operating Segments

The Helding Company’s Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ({CODM), since he is responsible for al! major decisions wr 1 the
preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of any new facility. CODM has examined the Company’s
performance from product and geograplvic perspeciive and has idenlified a single business segment i e "Developing and running of hotels”, hence no specific disclosures have been
made

A Information about products and services
Company primarly deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels”, Iherefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable

B. information about geopraphical areas
The Company provides services 10 customers in India. Further, there are ne non-current assets located ourside [ndia.

C. Infermation about major customers (from external customers)
The Company does not detive revenue from one customer which wouid amount to 10 per cent or more of the entily’s revenus
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34 Related party disclosures
a) Related party and nature of related party relationship where control exists:

Description of relationship Name of the Party

Holding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited

b) Other retated parties with whom transactions have been taken place:

Description of relationship Name of the Party

Argon Hotels Private Limited

Barque Hotels Private Limited

SAMHI Holels (Gurgaon) Private Limited
SAMHI Holels { Ahmedabad ) Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary

¢} Transactions during the year

Particulars

Holding C

S

Fellow subsidiary

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Interest on loan from holding company

SAMHI Hotels Limited

11342

1331

Loan from holding company {(unsecured)

SAMHI Hotels Limited

9142

82048

Other expenses

Legal and professional fees

SAMHI Hotels Limited

27.88

26.00

Reimbursement of expense

Argon Hotels Private Limited

002

SAMHI Holels {Gurgaon) Private Limited

105

0.62

d} Year end balances

Particulars

Holdiog Company

Fellow subsidiary

31 March 2023

31 Mareh 2022

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Other equily

Equity component of interest free loans from Holding Company

SAMHI Hotels Limited

31525

315125

Trade receivables

Argon Rotels Private Limited

0.02

Bargue Hotels Private Limited

0.035

SAMHI Hotels Limited

0.06

SAMHI Holels {Gurgaon} Private Limited

0.62

Current Minancial assets - Others

Otiher Beceivable

SAMHI Hotels Limiled

Trade payables

SAMHI Hotels Limited

2945

Loan from holding company {unsecured)

SAMHI Hotels Limited (includes interest accrued)

1.024.75

§20.43

In addhion to the balances above,

- there is a pledge over shares of the Company held and owned by SAMHI Hote!s Limited, in respect of borrowings from banks and financial institutions taken by

the Company

- refer nole 16 (¢} in respect of security provided by SAMH! Hotels (Ahinedabad) Private Limited for loans from PHL Fininvest Private Limited
- there is a pledge over shares held and owned by SAMHI Hotels Limited, in respect of borrowings from DBS Bank India Limited laken by SAMHI Hotels

Limiled amouniing to INR 249 39 (31 March 2022; INR 407 89}

- the Company has provided undertaking cum guaraniee on behalf of SAMHI Hotels Limited in respect of borrowings from Piramal Capilal and Housing Finance

Lirnited taken by SAMHI Hotels Limiled amounting to INR 750 00

For the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Cormpany has not recorded any impairmet of receivables relating to amounts

< assessment is underiaken at each reponting pertod

xd by related parties
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35 Financial instrwments — Fair vahses and risk managemsent

A Financial instruments by category and Fair value

The belon 1able g5 the pud and made in the fur 1aloes of the financial Lhat are 1a) recognised and d a1 Fur yalue and {b] measured al

amaonised ¢ost and for which fair vaJues are disctosed in the financial To provide an indicanon sbout the rehability of the mputs used in detemining air value, the Compans has

classified 115 (inancial IRgiruments into the three lexels prescnbed under Lhe accounting siandard

31 March 2023
Level of hierarchy Fair ¥alue Through Profi1 | Faly Vabee Throogh Other | Amontised Cast
Pasticulars and Loss (FYTPL} Camprehensive Income
{FYTOCT)

Fimancial assets
her non—ument financial assets - - - X367
Trade receiy ables - 32 kR
Cash and cash equus alems - i #4
Bark balances ciher Lhan cach and cach sguiyalenis aboe - S T4
Oiher current (inancial assers - 758
Tatal financial assets - - 203.71
Financial kabilties
Nen-curmenl borowings 43 - = 430731
Cumrent bormow ings 2 - - 33613

- 2356

Trade pa ables = -
Other current Mnancial liakilities - - - 303

Teial i il liabiliries - - 5.283.63
31 March 2022
Level of hierarchy Fair Value Through Profit | Fair Yalee Through Other|  Amortised Cost
Particulars and Loss (F¥TPL] Comprehensive Income
{F¥TOCDH
Financial assets
Other non-current financial assels . . Ik 07
Trade receivables - - - 2470
Cazh and cash equi alenls - - . <47 90
Other curment finaneial assets - - 123
Taral fingmeial assets - - 12308
Financial Nabilities
HNon-current borrowines 23 - . 4563 1K)
Currenl borrgw ings 2 - - 31206
Trade pa: ables - 134 118
Ouher cumrent (inanaal liabihies - 1% fid
Totadl [k ial diabilities - - 4.8149.67
A) Financial instrumenis by category and Fair valee
Financial liabililies measured ad amagrtised cost- Fair vaboe measuvemenis
As al As at
31 March 2013 31 March 2022
Financial fiabilities
Ophonally comeriible redesmable debentures (OCRDY Level 33 #4 Hy K6 B

The far value of lrade recéiables, unbilled revenve, cash and cash equivalenis, bank balances other than cash and cash equisalems, other cument financial asse1s, cumrent borrew ings. trade
pasables and other current Ninancral habilivies approvimate thewr camy ing amoums, due o Lhear shon-term nature

Imeregy rates on nen-curment boowangs {rom bank and financial instiultons) are equivalent to the maked rae Such barronmgs are camracied a1 Moaune rates and raies are resev a shon

nlenals Accordingh, the carnoing value of such bomow ings approxmates (ur value
as5els included m non-current loans are equitalent 1o ther cam ing amount. as the inlerest raie on them is equitalent 1o rmarkey

Fair value of bank dep luded in L other i
rte
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B) Measuremend of fair valuss

The differant levels of far value have been defined belon

Level I: quoted prices (Lnadjusted) i ackive markets for identical asseis or liabilines

Level 2 npms olher than quoded pnces included i Level | thal are obserable for the assels of habulus, either direcdls i ¢ 28 prices) or indirecily {1 & denved fram prices)
Level 3 mpuis forihe assels or habiliny that are not baged on obsery able markel data {unobsen able mpuis)

There are no trangler betvsen Lavel ). Level 2 and Level 3 dunng Lhe s ear.

Vahuation lechnique used do delevonive fair valee
Speaific valualipn 1echmgue used 16 1alue financral nsiruments include
- Far valus o Optionally comy ermible red ble deb TOCR D} s computed based on monte carlo method of valuation of the instrument

C) Details of significa unobservable inpuis

Significant umebservable inpuls Inder-relationship b significant unobservable inputs and foir vakue
Asal As at Renacks
31 March 2023 31 March 2012

Finanrial Habilites measured at amortised cost
Financial Kabikities

Optignally convertible redeemable debentures (OCRD) (unsecured)

1.262 22| The esimaied fair valug would increxse (decrease) T the business

Business Yalue ).246. 55
+ tlue v Fogher (ower)

Rusl Free rate T g 7 23%)| The estimated [air +al ve would decrease (increased il the risk (ree
rale wae hugher (lower)

Volatiliss rate 3915% 56 1% The estimated fair value would increase (decrease) il the volanlhy

rate was higher tover)

I} Fingncial risk wianagement
Risk management framework
The Company ‘s acuy Ies evpose i 10 3 vaien of Gnaaral nsks marker nsk (ineluding foreagn exchange nsk md mierest rne nsk). credin nsk and ligwdin nsk

The Holding Company s chiel” financial officer under the direchions of the board of directors tmplements financial ngh management policies across the Company  The Company s nsh management policies ane established Lo
wdenufy and analy se the nisks faced b the Company . to set appropnale nsk limis and comcals. 10 monior nsks and adherence 1o Limits n order 10 munimize Lhe financial impact of such nsks The nsh management policies and

syseems are reviewed resululy lo rellect changes i marksy conditions and the Compan § activiigs

i Credil risk
Credn nsh 15 the risk of financial loss 1o the Company 1f g ar parts 1o a i | Fuls 10 meet is contraciual cbligations The cam ing amoum of J assets rep the credn nsh
exposure The Compan has credil podicies in place and the exposures 1o Ihase credit nsks are monitored on an ongomng bass

To carer 10 the credi nsh for bak wilh bank ] onh high rated banksinst are p

The Compan: has given secuniity dep to Govemment dep and o vendors for secunng senices from them mnd remial deposits for employ es accommodations Furher, the Company has other recanable palances
ouisianding 35 al y¢ar énd (rom v endors agamst cost reimbursement. The Compans does nol expect an defaull {rom these paries and accordingh the sk of defoult 15 negligible or il

In respect of credil exposures (rom irade recenablesfunbilled reyenue. the Company has policies m place 1o ensure thal sades on eredn vathaut collateral are made prncipally o ravel aeenis and corporate companies with an
appropnate credil hislon Sales o other customers are made 1n cash or by credil cards

The Compan; establishes an allow ance for umparrment Lhal represents s espected credil losses in respect of irade recervables The management uses a simplilied appeoach [or the purpose of compulalion of expected credit loss
for trade recen ables In ¥ credit nsk. are prouped ding 10 Lhewr credil characiensiics, including whether they arg an individisal or legal enun., thewr peographical locanon, indusin and esisience
ol previous financial diMiculnes, Cam

Recondiation of lass alloveance provision

For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2023 31 March 2022

Trade receivables
Opening balance 527 k1]
Pron ion made dunng (b 1ear 486 Ui
Closing balance 10.23 517
Current financial assels - Others
Opening balance 3ns 30
Provsione no longer required wnlien back dunng the vear (303) -

& 105

Cloging balamce

The impairment provisions for finaneal asseis disclosed abos e are based on assumpiions about nsh of defaull and espected logs raes The company uses judgement in making hese assumpuans and selecung the Inpuls 1o the
imparment calculyton, based on the Compan ‘s past ston . evsung marker condiuons a3 well a5 forward lockng esumates 1 the &hd of s3ch reporing period

in. Liquidity risk

The Company $ appd oach 10 managing hquidiny 1s v ensure. as far as possibie. that it will has 2 swilicient liquidine w meet ils Labihines when they are due, under both aonnal and siressed condinons
Ullinxate responsibihily for hiquidis nzh management rests with the board of direetors, which has esiablished an appropoate liqmdiiy fish management iramew ork fpr the management of the Company s shori-lerm. medivm term

and long-term funding and hquidin. management requirements
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{a) Exposure to liquidiry nisk
The Rllowing are the i [ I of fi | tiabilities at the reporung date The amaunis are gross and undiscounted
Contractos cash flows
31 March 2023 Carrying amwsni Taal 0-1 yeor 1-2 years 2-5 years Vore than 5
yemrs

Mon-cumeni bomonings 4397 3) 443798 . 33313 242375 148098
Current bomosngs. 3603 33613 33613 . - -
Trade pnables 22336 I} 36 22356
Crher current financiadl liabulities 12063 32063 32663 - - -

528363 S.324.30 886,32 533.28 242378 1,480,958

Contractual cash Bows
31 March 2022 Carvying amount Totad 0-1 year 1-2 years 2.5 yeary More than 5
years

On-CUIment bomowings 4 36300 441172 . F95 60 L2317 238414
Current borrowngs 31206 21 Iz - - -
Trade pan ables 154 03 154 0% 15408 -
Ouher current financial habililies 1964 1964 1% 6 - - -

4.949.67 489745 48577 F05.60 1231.97 253414
({b) Financing arrangemems
The company had aceess io the following undraw n bocrowing facilittes at the end of the reporung penod

As al Asal
1 tarch 2023 31 Mawch 2022
Floaling rate
Espining besond one vear (ierm loan lrom bankstfinancial inshlulians} 5Tud ELY
57.94 20004

i, Market risk

The Company 15 ¢xposed 1o markel fsh pomans relating 1o the nsh of changes i market pnces. such as foreign exchange rales and inlerest rates. that will affect he Company s expense or the value of 15 holdings of financial

1nesiriumen 3

Cuorrency risk

The Compam s exposure (o foreizn currencs nsk 15 on account of pay ables for management fees and other expendiure in currencies other than the funchona curréncy of he Company

Exposure 10 curvency rish

The Company 's esposure 1o forsign curmeney nsh an the end of the reporing year are as follows

31 March 2023 Currency Amouni in fereign Amournt im INR
cwrreny {in millioa) {in midllion}
Fimancial liabilities
Trade pn ables vip 113 #4 53
31 March 2022
Curvency Amoum im foreign Amsamt in INR
Curveny (in onilkion) {im milon)
Financial liabilithes
Trade p ables usD 7 5362
Sensthivity mmalysis
A b bl I # 1w eal of the Indian Rupee against forsign currency 31 1 éar énd would have allected the of financia d 1n fereivn currency and afTected aquin and

profit or loss ba the amounis shown below This anals sis aesimes that Ak other «anables in panseular inierest rates. remanm constant and rgnorés any Impact of forecaet sales and purchases

(Profit) ! loss Equity, ot of 1a1
Efectin INR Suengihmng Weghening Strenathrung Weakening
31 March 2023
LSD{ 1% movement) LK {0K5} k4 [T+
045 (0.85) 0.85 (0.35)
{Profit} / boss Equity, net of 1ax
Effect in INR Sirenuthning Weakeniny Surenglhrune Weakenung
30 March 2022
USD{ | % mevemeant} 054 {1 54} 1134 (1 54)
0.54 {054} 054 1054}

lnteres| rale risk

Imterest rate nsh 15 the nsh that the far value or future cash flows of'a finzncal msirument waill Auciuie because of changes i madket imigrest rales The Compam s exposure 1o the nsk of chanees in niarked inlerest rates relates
primanly o the Company 's borrowings obligations with Noanng tierss) russ

The Company esafuates the interest rates in the markel on 3 regular bass 10 explore the oplion of refinancing of the borrow ngs of the Group Moreoyer. majonty of the Group's borronangs are pnmanly haked (o leanng nierest
rates. thereby resulung un the adyisimenis of ug bomow ng co2ts 10 hing with the markel interest
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Exposure 1o interest rate risk

The inlerest rae profile of the Compam 's interest-beanng (inancial nsiraments 15 as follows

Nowminal amouml
31 March 2023 31 March 1022
Fined-rate insruments
Financial assets - Bank deposils 112 %0 3053
11280 053

Variable-rate instramemis
Fancial liabiliies - Term loans from banks 8137 IIRIGS
Financial liabilies - Term loans from financial mstinnons 345152

393189 3, 781.68
Tatal 404560 351218

Fair vakue semsitivity analysis lor fined-rale insimuments

The Company does nol account for any fived-re financial asseis or financial Liabilines a1 far value through profic or foss Thersfore. a chanys m nlerest vates ab the reponing dale would not
affect profit of loss Also refer note 364 for lar +alue disclosure

Cash flow Sensitivity analysis for variahbe-raie msinmmenis

A reasonably possible change of (U0 basis poimis m inleres! rales at the reporiing date would hay & increased (decreased) equiiy and profil or tass by the amounis shown below. This anals 513
assumes that all other 1anables. reman constam

(Proflu) / loss Equity, wet of tax
100 by increase 100 bp deciease 100 bp increase 100 by decrease

31 March 2023

Financral liabilines kv 134 30} 3930 (39 30)
Cash flow Sensitiviry {met) 3930 i39.30) 320 (393
31 March 2622

Finanaval habhres azn [k ri ] 327 132 72)
Cash Mow Sensitividy (ned) 3172 {32.72) JL.72 3270

Capital Management
The Compan's policy is Lo matnian a strong capilal base 0 46 10 mantan imestor, credilor and market confidence and 1o sustan (uture development of the business

The Board of Earectors of the Holding company. se<hs (o maniain a balance beiv een the higher retumns that mught be possible with higher levels of bemowing and the adxamages and secunty
afforded by a sound copilal posiven The Compang momlors capilal usmg loan fo 1 atue (LTY) methad 1o ensure thal the loan 10 value does not mereass beavond 63% on any ghen reporting daie
at Compam |2vel The company 15 in the process of compls ing with the sad requinement

The Campany 15 ol subject to v impesed capital req

As a par of us capnia management polic . Lhe Cornpqru did aod have ans continteng defoulis i the repas mem of loans and interest There have been no matenal loan covenant defaulis and
there has been no mimanon from the banks! fi Tor recalling any loan faciliy  The Company has souchi and recened wanver letlers from all ils lenders as o and for the 3 ear

ended 31 March 2123
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Dachawres under Micra, Swall snd Mediume Enterprizes Devclepmant Act, 2006 iIMSMED)

A al As ot
31 March U123 31 March 7822

Drmes 40 micrs und small sppliors
L omewnts romwning unposd Lo mero end small spplers e al i ol of e
Pnnemal (b1 1345
Inlerest 0k LT}
Tihe amotns of e g Tnl+ Meach; to mpere amd <mall supplees b the appomed Uy dunng eoch sccouning 1ear na
Lo amwsunt ool kvt pond under the 3t by nod the spipoinied dan dupng she vur
1z amcmh wel bt due and payabbe For e ponsd of ddin 10 mokang pement (adnel have bosn pand bt bevemd the sppomied da URL
durng the: Lo b hut v b sddimg the sntened spoeaticd under Mol D Acl XioG

L] "

Tiw: amwmd of ierest pocruen anad cemannmng wngesd 20 b ol of cach Qecounling e

T armwsnd o [larther imberesd remamning duc nd pasabde ¢oom on The aiceading veors, untl auch dote wbon e mones dus as above we
avtually patd e U zmal| o Bor De purpee: of deal i ane 25 a deduetbbs wpendiune wder the Act

i he managorknt b idennfod eierpn-as whoch have provided poods sod seroces e the Company and whach quobfy wder e defimbion of mpge ond amall encerposes o dolined user Moo Small and Meediom Unlerpiast Dewabopment Aa B
1SMEEE Accorimply e disclosurs 1o nespoct ol the s pasabke w such ankemnas A< 31 orch 2025 und 31 Morch 3122 hus boon made m rhe Hranesl aaiemonts based on inimation reeened and ovadable st the Compom

Impact of COVID-1Y pandemic (i Hng peing

Ihe Cormpom, hos voowmod 2 o Bess of ISIE S22 35 dunng e vear andod 31 Warch 2023 (31 Mareh 2023 . INR 757 13 b v of'than dote 1he Compant 3 curtenl Tiahulines enooabod i1, aurent ssses by (INE TS0 BL Ason 3 Macch 2625 (e Conopam, hus
Tusen largely fundad T Juans rem bankss linansial amd e an I nepar o [IIE 336 13 due wathm 12 monthes of 1he halone: <heat dateewcludme vz acotued ameuntng i TNE 308 90 oo athan L2 mwwehs o)t bakance e

i)

I the curment year wonsequed Lo relucon i the pmber of COVITL T casecand casng o) all waved reancions e Compant ha waimkceaad 2 AN s Samng fom Q1 FY 2073 the Company b demwnstrated impn s buangss perivimanis m lams
of A croge Rovmn Bevan: (AR b amd decupany levels ARR and Oveupames kvl n | ¥ 32225 md 1 1Y 2020 3 have peached MR 7 222 i 6% mnd (MK 8073 and 63% respectin e The Compamy o projected o agruiicant mereas: a iz cash (o
Toemn wpwrativns doong the veacs codiog 31 March 3024 wnd 31 bupeh 2025 | e ampans has cash aod bank, balance of INF 112 55 deachuding reanctal bonk depo-atsh and ondesn orcdin faebie: o TNE 37 3 wsoon 31 Moo 2023 shach will g fin
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Notes to the financial statements for (he year ended 31 March 2023
(A amonnts e Rupees miffions, wiless otherwse stated)

47

Impairment of assels

Jmpairment testing for cash-generating unils

In accordance with Ind AS 36 “Impairmen of Assets™, the Company had idemified individual hotels (co

unil {CGLT) for the purpose of impairment review M periodically

books and the recoverabls value

Recoverable amount is value in use of the hotel and is baged on discouned cash flow method which was classified as a level 3 fair value in the fair value hi
unabservable inputs There has been no change in the valualion techmque as compared 10 previous years

sy

assels) a5 a sep cash ing

of property, plant and equip and i

hy due to the i

whelheér thers is an indication thal an asset may be impaired using a companison between carrying value of assets in

of one or more

During the current year, based on the impainment analysis cartied oul by the management, no impairment loss is required 1o be recorded in the financial statements

The key used in the ian of the recoverable amount are set out below

Assumptions
As at

31 March 2013

Asal
31 March 2022

Discount rate Pre 1ax / Posi Tax 12 34% 7 12 15%

Average Room Revenue (ARR) growih rale 10 5%

Termimal Value multiple 14 1 times
Ta%

Expected Occupancy rate

1222%7 11 7%
8% 10 10%
14 times
65% - 749

Based on the impairment lesting performed, the managemen believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the recoverable amount to be lower than carrying

amount of the CGU

The notes from Note | to Node 47 form an integral part of these financial statements
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